
1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Introduction of Public

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

A. President's Report, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. (Recommended
Motion: President appoints FY24 Committees)

B. Director's Report, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. (Recommended
Motion: None, discussion only)

C. Fiscal Report Presentation, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library.
(Recommended Motion: None, discussion only)

6. Consent Agenda

A. Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of April 18, 2023 Regular BPL
Board meeting, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library. (Recommended
Motion: The proposed Minutes be approved.)

B. Consideration and Action to Approve Bills in the Amount of $749,258.88, as
requested by the Bloomington Public Library. (Recommended Motion: The
proposed Bills be approved.)

7. Approval Items

A. Approve the Annual EBSCO Subscription Service Renewal, as requested by the
Bloomington Public Library. (Recommended Motion: Waive the Competitive Three-
Quote Requirement and Approve the Annual EBSCO Subscription Service Renewal  )

8. Discussion Items

A. Intergovernmental Agreement for Library Services between Bloomington Public
Library and Golden Prairie Public Library District, as requested by the Bloomington

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR SESSION
OSBORN ROOM, BLOOMINGTON POLICE DEPARTMENT

305 S. EAST ST., BLOOMINGTON, IL 61701
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 5:30 PM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Items listed on the Consent Agenda are approved with one motion; Items pulled from
the Consent Agenda for discussion are listed and voted on separately.

 

 

 

 

 

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/46dc2ee988362ec906a83001896b25960.pdf


Public Library. (Recommended Motion: None, discussion only)

B. Strategic Goal Brainstorming, as requested by the Bloomington Public Library.
(Recommended Motion: None, discussion only)

9. Comments from Trustees

10. Adjournment

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities planning to attend the meeting who require reasonable
accommodations to observe and/or participate, or who have questions about the
accessibility of the meeting, should contact the City’s ADA Coordinator at 309-434-2468 or
mhurt@cityblm.org.

2

matilto:mhurt@cityblm.org


3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Golden Prairie Public Library District 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

 
Wednesday, April 19, 2023 

Immediately following the GPPLD Decennial Committee on Local Government Efficiency Meeting (which began at 
5:00pm)  

  
MINUTES 

I. Call to Order 
President Novosad called the meeting to order at 5:43 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
Trustees Present:  Ary Anderson, Stephen Peterson, Jim Russell, Patti Salch,  

Kathy Vroman, Ruth Novosad  
 

Others Present:  Nan Goerlitz, Jeanne Hamilton, Kathy Jeakins 
 
Absent:   Stephanie Walden 
 

III. Introductions 
There were no introductions.  
 

IV. Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 
 

V. President’s Report 
President Novosad shared that she would report her items during Unfinished Business. 
 

VI. Approval of Minutes 
A. March 15, 2023 

The minutes were approved as corrected. 
 

VII. Staff Reports 
A. Director’s Report: Jeanne Hamilton, Library Director, shared that population increases due to the 

Colonial Meadows and other areas that were added to the GPPLD tax rolls will increase the Per 
Capita Grant allotment this year. The population will increase to 8,252 people. 
 

B. Circulation and Outreach Report: Jeanne shared Colleen Shaw, Circulation and Outreach Manager’s 
report. Bookmobile attendance could exceed the last 7 years of attendance highs. At the end of 
March, they were at 12,112 visitors. Highest in the last 7 years was in 2017 with 12,904.  
One of the Bookmobile drivers is resigning for personal reasons, so a new driver is being hired.  
Patti had a question about the appraisals for the artwork loan to the history museum. The 
Bloomington Public Library will loan two art pieces on a long-term basis. Part of the loan 
agreement lists appraised value, and the pieces were appraised at the library’s expense. The library 
is also donating two pieces that are valued under $1,000 to the museum. 
 

C. Financial Report: The Financial Report was included in the packet, and Ruth entertained questions. 
Stephen asked about the $84K in checking and if at least some of that was intended for capital 
improvements. Jeanne shared that the expansion project is fully funded, but she is working with 
staff to identify areas where funds are still needed. She will share those details hopefully before 
June 2023. 

 
VIII. Unfinished Business 

A. Update on Annexations: 

25



President Novosad shared that attorney Robert Porter filed an initial brief at the end of March, with 
responses due by April 7. Shortly before the deadline, the state’s attorney representing the County 
Assessor asked for a continuance.  The new deadline for responses is April 20. GPPLD’s attorney has 
till May 4 to file a reply. The hearing is scheduled for May 17 at 9:00 a.m. 
 

IX. New Business 
A. Report Election Results 

Election results from the April 4, 2023 Consolidated election were reviewed. Patti Salch, Ary 
Anderson, and Jim Russell were re-elected to the GPPLD Board of Trustees. Congratulations to Patti, 
Jim, and Ary. 
 

B. Appoint Nominating Committee for Slate of Officers 
The President appointed Stephanie Walden and Stephen Peterson to the Nominating Committee, 
with Stephanie as Chair.  
 

X. Comments from Board Trustees   
Patti asked if Colonial Meadows will get a Bookmobile stop. Jeanne stated the next cycle of review for 
stops is in August. 
 

XI. Reminder 
A. File Your Economic Statement of Interest 

Ruth reminded everyone that these are due May 1. Ary commented that she had already submitted 
hers and was notified it was in review, but she hasn’t had an update since then. Jeanne indicated 
she would be notified of anyone who still needs to file closer to the due date, and she would 
communicate with those on the list. 
 

B. Next Board Meeting is May 17, 2023 
 

XII. Adjournment 
President Novosad adjourned the meeting at 6:05 p.m. 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



BLOOMINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday, April 18, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

Osborn Room 
Bloomington Police Department 

305 S. East Street, Bloomington, IL  61701 

 

Minutes 

 

I. Call to Order 
President Westerhout called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
Trustees Present: Alicia Henry, Dianne Hollister, Van Miller (arrived at 5:33 

p.m.), Catrina Parker, Matt Watchinski, Julian Westerhout 
 
Trustees Absent: John Argenziano, Susan Mohr, Alicia Whitworth 
 
Others Present: Nan Goerlitz, Jeanne Hamilton, Kathy Jeakins, Caprice 

Prochnow 
 

III. Introduction of Public 
There were no public in attendance. 
 

IV. Public Comment 
There were no public comments. 
 

V. President’s Report 
President Westerhout gave a reminder to those who have not yet filed their Statement of 
Economic Interest that the deadline is next month. 
He shared that Jeanne Hamilton presented an expansion project update at the previous 
night’s City Council meeting.  
 

VI. Director’s Report 
Jeanne Hamilton introduced Nan Goerlitz, our new Administrative Assistant. Nan will be 
taking care of the minutes and Board packets for this Board. 
Jeanne shared that the Bookmobile attendance is very high right now, and it could exceed the 
past 7 years of attendance highs. She commented that this is probably because of added stops 
and continued outreach to new and lower attended stops. 
She mentioned that construction is moving along well, and Phase 2 is on track for late July.  
The library will probably close for a couple days for collection movement, but the plan is to 
keep any closure to a minimum.  
Jeanne indicated that a two-ton chiller is being lifted onto the roof this week. The library will 
close during this operation for safety reasons, but the closure should only be about 45-60 
minutes.  

39



She indicated our mosaic fundraiser is complete, having raised $12,300. Fundraising is 
currently in a passive state at this point, with additional fundraising going toward things like 
outfitting the Innovation Lab, etc. There was some discussion of stewardship for the donors, 
and Jeanne stated that plans were forming for special tours, naming rights, and future 
collaborations with those who have donated or expressed interest in partnering on future 
projects/programs. 
There was a question about the Summer Reading Program theme of Build a Better World at 
Your Library. Jeanne confirmed that staff created the theme to tie into our expansion project. 
 

VII. Fiscal Report Presentation 
Kathy Jeakins, Business Manager, reported that revenues and expenditures should be a little 
over 91% through the end of March. Projections have been exceeded in revenues and 
underspent in expenditures. With the end of the fiscal year approaching, staff are keeping a 
close watch on both expenditures and revenues. She entertained questions. 
 

VIII. Consent Agenda 
A. Approve Minutes of March 21, 2023 Regular BPL Board Meeting 
B. Approve Bills List of March 2023 

MATT WATCHINSKI MOVED, CATRINA PARKER SECONDED, TO APPROVE 
THE CONSENT AGENDA.  THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 

IX. Executive Session – Performance and Compensation of a Specific Employee (5 ILCS 
120/2(c)(1)) 

DIANNE HOLLISTER MOVED, CATRINA PARKER SECONDED, TO GO INTO 
EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS PERFORMANCE AND COMPENSATION OF 
A SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE. 
 
Ayes: Alicia Henry, Dianne Hollister, Van Miller, Catrina Parker, Matt 

Watchinski, Julian Westerhout 
 
Nays: None 
 
Absent: John Argenziano, Susan Mohr, Alicia Whitworth 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
The Board went into Executive Session at 5:48 p.m. 
 
CATRINA PARKER MOVED, MATT WATCHINSKI SECONDED, TO RESUME 
REGULAR SESSION.  THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
The Board resumed regular session at 6:16 p.m. 
 
President Westerhout stated that no action took place during Executive 
Session. 

 
X. Approval Items 

A. Approve Director Merit Increase for FY24 

40



The President indicated that both the Board and Managers gave Jeanne very positive 
evaluations. He went on to express the Board’s heartfelt gratitude for the job she’s doing.   

 
CATRINA PARKER MOVED, DIANNE HOLLISTER SECONDED, TO APPROVE A 
MERIT INCREASE OF 4 PERCENT FOR FY24 
 
Ayes: Alicia Henry, Dianne Hollister, Van Miller, Catrina Parker, Matt 

Watchinski, Julian Westerhout 
 
Nays: None 
 
Absent: John Argenziano, Susan Mohr, Alicia Whitworth 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
B. Review and Approve Salary Ranges for Non-Union Employees 

Jeanne worked with Gayle to develop the salary ranges. The company HR Source put 
together a salary survey for libraries, and Bloomington received access to the results 
free by participating in the survey. Gayle also attended a webinar on developing ranges. 
These new ranges are in alignment with Bloomington's peer libraries and market 
changes. 
 

MATT WATCHINSKI MOVED, CATRINA PARKER SECONDED, TO APPROVE 
SALARY RANGES FOR NON-UNION EMPLOYEES. THE MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
C. Approve FY24 Slate of Officers 

Matt Watchinski, Chair, reported that the proposed FY24 Slate of Officers is as follows: 
President – Julian Westerhout 
Vice-President – Susan Mohr 
Treasurer – Catrina Parker 
Secretary – Dianne Hollister 
 

VAN MILLER MOVED, MATT WATCHINSKI SECONDED, TO APPROVE FY24 
SLATE OF OFFICERS.  THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

XI. Comments from Trustees 
Julian indicated that the Board had discussed the Strategic Plan last month and asked 
everyone to come prepared to discuss one or more goal suggestions at next month’s meeting.  
Jeanne will send out the current Strategic Plan for reference.  
Julian commented that this will be his last year on the Board. The current Board and staff 
have made it a rewarding experience.   
Catrina shared that she was interviewed by The Guardian and WGN News about the Golden 
Girls convention. She was quoted several times in the article, and they mentioned her podcast. 
Dianne appreciated the information about increased attendance for the Bookmobile. At the 
RAILS meetings there’s a time to “honk your horn” about your library, and she plans to share 
this news.  

41



Dianne commented that she got a call from RAILS looking for a recommendation of a Library 
Trustee to run for the RAILS Board. She would like to see more representation from our area 
and asked if anyone had suggestions to let her know. 
Dianne also expressed that she loves our programs, especially the First Ladies programs.  
Dianne had a question about the donation threshold for naming recognition for rooms at the 
library. Jeanne shared that a $5,000+ donation receives room naming recognition. There will 
also be a donor wall which will recognize donations of $500 or more. 

 
 
XII. Adjournment  

VAN MILLER MOVED, MATT WATCHINSKI SECONDED, TO ADJOURN THE 
MEETING.  THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
President Westerhout adjourned the meeting at 6:43 p.m. 

 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.

FOR LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES: May 16, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: City-Wide Impact

SUBJECT: Intergovernmental Agreement for Library Services between Bloomington Public
Library and Golden Prairie Public Library District, as requested by the Bloomington Public
Library.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None, discussion only.

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: The Bloomington Public Library (BPL) has an intergovernmental agreement
(IGA) with the Golden Prairie Public Library District (GPPLD) to provide GPPLD with library
services.  As part of a recent review of all its policies and intergovernmental relationships,
the GPPLD board found that the IGA hasn’t been updated since its original inception in
1990. With this discovery, the GPPLD requested that IGA be reviewed and updated.
 
Attached are the suggested amendments. 
 
The review and approval process will take place over the course of several meetings as it
will involve coordination with the GPPLD Board of Trustees.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: A legal review has been
completed.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN FUNDING IMPACT: 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT IMPACT:
This request meets the following goals and objectives of the Bloomington Comprehensive
Plan 2035:

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Jeanne Hamilton

ATTACHMENTS:
GPPLD-BPL Service Contract_working draft.pdf

49

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1941812/GPPLD-BPL_Service_Contract_working_draft.pdf


 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY SERVICE 

 

 

 

 

by and between the 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE PUBLIC 

LIBRARY OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON,  

MCLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

 

and 

 

 

 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE GOLDEN 

PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, MCLEAN 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

 

 

Dated as of July 1, 1990 

Amended XXXX XX,2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

RECITALS....................................................1 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS.................................3 

Section 1.1 Definitions.................................3 

Section 1.2 Construction................................4 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES...............6 

Section 2.1 Representation and Warranties of the 

 City Library Trustees.......................6 

 Section 2.1.1 Organization and Standing..........6 

 Section 2.1.2 Power and Authority................6 

 Section 2.1.3 Authorization and Enforceability...6 

 Section 2.1.4 No Violation.......................6 

 Section 2.1.5 Governmental Consents and 

   Approvals..........................6 

Section 2.2  Representations and Warranties of the 

  District Library Trustees...................7 

 Section 2.2.1 Organization and Standing..........7 

 Section 2.2.2 Power and Authority................7 

 Section 2.2.3 Authorization and Enforceability...7 

 Section 2.2.4 No Violation.......................7 

 Section 2.2.5 Governmental Consents and 

   Approvals..........................8 

Section 2.3  Disclaimer of Warranties....................8 

ARTICLE III  OBLIGATIONS OF CITY LIBRARY TRUSTEES........9 

Section 3.1  Common Library Services.....................9 

Section 3.2  Additional Library Services.................9 

Section 3.3  Rules and Regulations.......................9 

Section 3.4  Indemnification............................10 

Section 3.5  Insurance Required.........................10 

Section 3.6  Other Services.............................10 

ARTICLE IV  OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT LIBRARY TRUSTEES...12 

Section 4.1  Acceptance of Library Services.............12 

Section 4.2  Annual Payment for Library Services........12 

Section 4.3  Grant Applications and Funds...............13 

ARTICLE V  DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES......................14 

Section 5.1  Defaults – Rights to Cure..................14 

51



Section 5.2  Remedies...................................14 

ARTICLE VI  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS...................16 

Section 6.1  Entire Contract and Amendments.............16 

Section 6.2  Third Parties..............................16 

Section 6.3  Counterparts...............................16 

Section 6.4  Waiver.....................................17 

Section 6.5  Cooperation and Further Assurances.........17 

Section 6.6  Severability...............................17 

Section 6.7  Notices....................................17 

Section 6.8  Successors in Interest.....................19 

Section 6.9  No Joint Venture, Agency, or  

  Partnership Created; Reservation of 

  Rights, etc................................19 

Section 6.10  Illinois Law...............................19 

Section 6.11  Costs and Expenses.........................19 

Section 6.12  No Personal Liability of Officials.........20 

Section 6.13  Repealer...................................20 

Section 6.14  Term.......................................20 

 

 

52



 

 

1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY SERVICES 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR PROVIDING LIBRARY 

SERVICES (the “Agreement") originally executed on the 21st day of 

August, 1990 and amended on the XX day of XXXX, 2023dated as of the 1st 

day of July, 1990, but actually executed on the dates set forth 

below by the respective signatures of each of the parties hereto, is 

made and entered into by and between the Board of Trustees of the 

Public Library of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 

Illinois, (the “City Library Trustees”), and Board of Library 

Trustees of the Golden Prairie Public Library District, McLean 

County, Illinois, a body politic and corporate (the “District Library 

Trustees”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, in accordance with and pursuant to the The Illinois 

Public Library District Act (75 ILCS 16/Illinois Revised Statutes, 

ch. 81, par. 1001-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended, the 

“Library District Act”), the Golden Prairie Library District, 

McLean County, Illinois, (the “District”) was duly created, formed 

and established in 1989 to provide a local public institution of 

general education for its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the District Library Trustees, upon such formation 

of the District, have determined that it is necessary and in the best 

interests of the citizens of the District for the District Library 

Trustees to contract for the provision of such library service to 

its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with and pursuant to The Illinois 

Local Library Act (75 ILCS 5/Illinois Revised statutes, ch. 81, par. 

1-0.1 et seq., as supplemented and amended, the “Local Library 

Act”) 

53



 

5 

 

the city Library Trustees own, operate, and maintain a public 

library building and related library facilities and materials 

for the use and benefit of the citizens of the City of 

Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10(a) of Article VII of 

the Constitution of the State of Illinois, units of local 

government may contract or otherwise associate among 

themselves to obtain or share services and to exercise, 

combine or transfer any power or function, in any manner not 

prohibited by law or by ordinance, and may use their credit, 

revenues, and other resources to pay costs and to service 

debt related to intergovernmental activities; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4-7(8) and (9) of the 

Local Library Act, the city Library Trustees have the power 

to contract with any public or private corporation or entity 

for the purpose of providing or receiving library service and 

to join with the board or boards of any one or more libraries 

in the State of Illinois for the maintenance of a common 

library or common library services for participants upon such 

terms as may be agreed upon by and between the boards; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 30-55.40 and 30-55.454-

11(8) and (9) of the Library District Act, the District 

Library Trustees have the power to contract with any public 

or private corporation or entity for the purpose of providing 

or receiving library service or of performing any or all 

other acts necessary and proper to carry out the 

responsibilities, the spirit, and the provisions of such Act 

and to join with the board or boards of one or more public 

libraries within the State of Illinois in maintaining 

libraries, or for the maintenance of a common library or 

common library services for the participants upon such terms 

54



 

5 

and conditions as may be agreed upon by and between the 

participating library boards"; and 

WHEREAS, the City Library Trustees are willing to 

provide and the District Library Trustees are willing to 

contract for such library services under and upon such terms 

and conditions as are more specifically set forth in this 

Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants and agreements contained herein, and for other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the Board of Library Trustees 

of the Public Library of the City of Bloomington, McLean 

County, Illinois and the Board of Library Trustees of the 

Golden Prairie Public Library District, McLean County, 

Illinois hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Definitions. For purposes of this 

Agreement, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, 

words and terms used in this Agreement shall have the meaning 

provided from place to place herein, including as follows: 

“City” means the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 

Illinois.  

“Corporate Authorities” means the Mayor and City 

Council of the City.  

“District” or "Golden Prairie Public Library District" 

means the library district established in accordance with and 

pursuant to The Illinois Public Library District Act comprised 

of the territory described as follows: 

All of Bloomington Township (excluding any part of the 

city of Bloomington located in Bloomington Township), 

all of Dale Township, and all of Old Town Township 

55



 

5 

(excluding any part of the Village of Downs located in  

Old Town Township), all of Dawson Township, and all of 

Arrowsmith Township in McLean County, Illinois (and 

expressly excluding the City of Bloomington and City of 

Bloomington Township), 

 

as such territory may subsequently be modified or amended by 

annexation to or disconnection from such territory. 

"Library Facilities” means the main library building 

located at 205 E. Olive Street in the City, or any other 

building or structure operated or maintained by the City 

Library Trustees for such library purposes, together with 

related furniture, fixtures and equipment, and library 

materials, including but not limited to, books, periodicals, 

recordings and electronic data storage and retrieval 

facilities. 

"Library Services” means the provision of facilities 

and services for the public use of the Library Facilities. 

"District Library Tax” means the annual public library 

tax which may be levied by the District Library Trustees for 

the establishment, maintenance and support of a public library 

or libraries or for contracting for library service in 

accordance with and pursuant to the Library District Act but 

specifically does not mean or include any other tax which may 

be levied by the District Library Trustees in accordance with 

and pursuant to the Library District Act or any other law of 

the State of Illinois. 

“Tax Rate Limit” means the District Library Tax rate 

which is equal to but does not exceed .15% of the va1ue of all 

taxable property within the District, as equalized and assessed 

by the Department of Revenue. 

Section 1.2 Construction. This Agreement, except where 

56



 

5 

the context by clear implication shall otherwise require, 

shall be construed and applied as follows: 

(a) definitions include both singular and plural. 

(b) pronouns include both singular and plural and 

cover all genders; and 

(c) headings of sections herein are solely for 

convenience of reference and do not constitute a part 

hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or 

effect hereof. 

(d) the words "hereof", "herein", "hereunder", 

"hereto", and other words of similar import refer to this 

Agreement as a whole and not solely to the particular 

portion thereof in which any such word is used. 

 

[End of Article I] 

 

 

 

  

57



 

6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 Representations and Warranties of the City 

Library Trustees. In order to induce the District Library 

Trustees to enter into this Agreement, the City Library Trustees 

hereby make certain representations and warranties to the District 

Library Trustees, as follows: 

Section 2.1.1 Organization and Standing. The City 

Library Trustees are duly organized, validly existing and in good 

standing under the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Illinois, and own, operate and maintain Library Facilities for the 

use and benefit of the citizens of the City pursuant to and in 

accordance with the Local Library Act. 

Section 2.1.2 Power and Authority. The City Library 

Trustees have full power and authority to execute and deliver 

this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, obligations, 

and undertakings hereunder. 

Section 2.1.3 Authorization and Enforceability. The 

execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement have been 

duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of 

the City Library Trustees. This Agreement is a legal, valid, and 

binding obligation of the City Library Trustees, enforceable 

against the City Library Trustees in accordance with its terms. 

Section 2.1.4 No Violation. Neither the execution nor 

the delivery of this Agreement or the performance of the City 

Library Trustees' agreements, obligations, and undertakings 

hereunder will conflict with, violate, or result in a breach of 

any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any agreement, 

rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, judgment, decree, or 

other law by which the City Library Trustees may be bound. 

Section 2.1.5 Governmental Consents and Approvals. No 

consent or approval by any governmental authority is required 

58



 

7 

in connection with the execution and delivery by the City 

Library Trustees of this Agreement or the performance by the 

City Library Trustees of its obligations hereunder, including 

in particular the Corporate Authorities of the City. 

Section 2.2 Representations and Warranties of the District 

Library Trustees. In order to induce the City Library Trustees 

to enter into this Agreement, the District Library Trustees 

make the following representations and warranties to the City 

Library Trustees: 

Section 2.2.1 Organization and Standing. The District Library 

Trustees are a body politic and corporate duly organized, 

validly existing and in good standing under the Constitution 

and laws of the State of Illinois to establish, maintain and 

support library services for the use and benefit of the 

citizens of the District pursuant to and in accordance with 

the Library District Act. 

Section 2.2.2 Power and Authority. The District Library 

Trustees have full power and authority to execute and deliver 

this Agreement and to perform all of its agreements, 

obligations and undertakings hereunder. 

Section 2.2.3 Authorization and Enforceability. The execution, 

delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly and 

validly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the 

District Library Trustees. This Agreement is a legal, valid 

and binding obligation of the District Library Trustees, 

enforceable against the District Library Trustees in 

accordance with its terms. 

Section 2.2.4 No Violation. Neither the execution nor 

the delivery of this Agreement or performance of the District 

Library Trustees' agreements, obligations and undertakings 

hereunder will conflict with, violate or result in a breach 

of any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any 

59



 

8 

agreement, rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, judgment, 

decree, or other law by which the District Library Trustees 

may be bound. 

Section 2.2.5 Governmental Consents and Approvals. No 

consent or approval by any governmental authority is required 

in connection with the execution and delivery by the District 

Library Trustees of this Agreement or the performance by the 

District Library Trustees of its obligations hereunder. 

Section 2.3 Disclaimer of Warranties. The City Library 

Trustees and the District Library Trustees acknowledge that 

neither has made any warranties to the other, except as set 

forth in this Agreement. 

[End of Article II] 

60



 

9 

 

ARTICLE III 

OBLIGATIONS OF CITY LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Section 3.1 Common Library Services. The City Library 

Trustees agree to provide and make available such common Library 

Services to the District Library Trustees, for and on behalf of the 

use and benefit of the citizens of the District, in the same manner 

and to the same extent as such Library Services may now or hereafter 

be provided and made available by the City Library Trustees for and on 

behalf of the use and benefit of the citizens of the City. 

Section 3.2 Additional Library Services. The City Library 

Trustees and the District Library Trustees mutually acknowledge their 

duty and obligation to provide and render such Library Services as 

are of the greatest benefit to the greatest number of their 

respective citizens, and, toward that end, the City Library Trustees 

agree to cooperate with the District Library Trustees to provide such 

reasonable additional Library Services to the citizens of the 

District as may from time to time be mutually agreed upon by both the 

City Library Trustees and the District Library Trustees so as to 

provide and make available such additional Library Services as may 

be required so as to enable the citizens of the District, who are 

more remotely located from the Library Facilities than the citizens 

of the City, to effectively receive such benefit. Such additional 

Library Services may include, but shall not be limited to, the 

provisions of certain Library Services within the territory of 

the District by means of a bookmobile, postal service, telephone, 

or other means of communication. 

Section 3.3 Rules and Regulations. The provision of 

Library Services by the City Library Trustees as specified in this 

Agreement shall at all times be subject to such reasonable rules 

and regulations as may lawfully be adopted from time to time by 

the City Library Trustees for the use of its Library Facilities, 

provided, however, that no such rule or regulation shall be 

61



 

 

10 

inconsistent with or have the effect of diminishing, reducing, or 

eliminating the obligations of the City Library Trustees to 

provide such Library Services as are specified in sections 3.1 

and 3.2 of this Agreement. 

Section 3.4 Indemnification. The city Library Trustees agree 

to protect, indemnify, hold and save harmless and defend the 

District Library Trustees against any and all losses, claims, 

demands, costs, causes, expenses and fees, including reasonable 

attorney fees, incurred by reason of any suit or other claim or 

demand for damages or injury, including death resulting 

therefrom, arising in favor of any person on account of or in 

connection with providing such Library Services as are specified 

in Sections 3.l and 3.2 hereof. 

Section 3.5 Insurance Required. During the term of this 

Agreement, or any extension thereof as herein provided, the City 

Library Trustees shall cause secure Commercial General liability 

insurance to be taken out and maintained in such generally 

recognized responsible from an AM Best AVII (or better) rated 

insurance companyies qualified to do business in the State of 

Illinois as may be selected by the city and/or the City Library 

Trustees, insuring continuously against all such risks as are 

specified in Section 3.4 hereof, and being in such amounts as are 

customarily insured against by libraries of like size and type. Limits 

shall be for no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 

general aggregate. All policies evidencing such library insurance 

shall name the City and/or the City Library Trustees as insureds and 

the District Library Trustees as an additional insured party. 

Section 3.6 Other Services. The City Library Trustees agree 

to cause all reports, statistics, and other material or information 

required by the Library District Act, the State of Illinois or any of 

its agencies, (including in particular the Illinois State Librarian) 

62



 

11 

 

and other units of local government to be timely prepared and filed 

for and on behalf of the District Library Trustees by the Director 

and/or employees of its Library Facilities, as appropriate. The City 

Library Trustees shall also cause such information and clerical 

assistance as may be reasonably required by the District Library 

Trustees to be compiled or provided for the use and benefit of the 

District Library Trustees. In addition, the City Library Trustees 

shall cause the Director of its Library Facilities, or such 

Director’s designee, to attend all regular and special meetings of 

the District Library Trustees. 

 

[End of Article III] 

63



 

12 

 

f 

ARTICLE IV 

OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Section 4.1 Acceptance of Library Services. The District 

Library Trustees agree to accept and receive such Library Services as 

are agreed to be provided and made available by the City Library 

Trustees for and on behalf of the use and benefit of the citizens of 

the District and to pay for such Library Services in the amount, at 

the time and in the manner set forth in Section 4.2 of this Agreement 

below. 

Section 4.2 Annual Payment for Library Services. The 

District Library Trustees agree to pay to the City Library Trustees 

for the Library Services to be provided to the District Library 

Trustees under this Agreement such amount as shall be equal to such 

net remaining proceeds as are available from the District Library 

Tax levied by the District Library Trustees at the Tax Rate Limit and 

collected by the County Collector of McLean County and thereafter 

deposited with the District Treasurer, after the retention by the 

District Treasurer of such amount as shall be required by the 

District Library Trustees for "Other Obligations of the District". 

As used in this section, "Other Obligations of the District" mean 

and include all appropriations in the annual budget and appropriation 

ordinance of the District Library Trustees for each fiscal year other 

than the appropriation for the payment of Library Services as 

specified in this section. Such "Other Obligations of the District" 

shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the total appropriations made 

in such annual budget and appropriation ordinance and may 

include, but shall not be limited to, appropriations for (1) 

the annual audit, (2) legal services, (3) the publication and 

service of legal notices, (4) dues, fees, and assessments to 

associations having the purpose of improving library services 

or librarianship, (5) surety bonds and insurance, (6) the 

maintenance or replacement of moneys in or for the Working 

64



 

13 

 

Cash Fund established by the District, and (7) any and all 

such other lawful purposes as may be deemed necessary by the 

District Library Trustees to carry out the spirit and intent 

of the Library District Act to provide Library Services 

within the District. Such amount of net remaining proceeds 

shall be paid to the City Library Trustees or at their 

discretion by the District Treasurer within forty-five (45) 

days of the date any such moneys are deposited by the County 

Collector with the District Treasurer. 

Section 4.3 Grant Applications and Funds. The District 

Library Trustees and the city Library Trustees agree to 

mutually cooperate in connection with the application for any 

federal or State of Illinois funds which may be made 

available to the District Library Trustees for library 

purposes. The expenditure of any such federal or State of 

Illinois funds so made available to the District Library 

Trustees shall be made by the District Library Trustees in 

accordance with such terms and conditions as may be 

established therefor in any such application and/or award of 

such funds. 

 

[End of Article IV] 

65



 

14 

 

ARTICLE V 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 5.1 Defaults – Rights to Cure. Failure or 

delay by either Party to timely perform any term or provision 

of this agreement shall constitute a default under this 

Agreement. The Party who so fails or delays must, upon 

receipt of written notice of the existence of such default, 

immediately commence to cure, correct, or remedy such default 

and thereafter proceed with diligence to cure such default. 

The Party claiming such default shall give written notice of 

the alleged default to the Party alleged to be in default 

specifying the default complained of. Except as required to 

protect against immediate, irreparable harm, the Party 

asserting a default may not institute proceedings against the 

other Party until thirty (30) days after having given such 

notice.  If such default is cured within such thirty (30) 

day period, the default shall not be deemed to constitute a 

breach of this Agreement. If the default is one which cannot 

reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days, such period shall 

be extended for such time as is reasonably necessary for the 

curing of the same, so long as there is diligent proceeding 

to cure such default. If such default is cured within such 

extended period, the default shall not be deemed to 

constitute a breach of this Agreement. However, a default 

not cured as provided above shall constitute a breach of this 

Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, any failure or delay by either Party in asserting 

any of its rights or remedies as to any default or alleged 

default or breach shall not operate as a waiver of any such 

default or breach of any rights or remedies it may have as a 

result of such default or breach. 

Section 5.2 Remedies. The sole remedies of either 

66



 

15 

 

Party in the event of a default by the other Party under any 

of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be either 

to institute legal action against the other Party for 

specific performance or other appropriate equitable relief or 

to terminate this Agreement. 

[End of Article V]

67



 

16 

 

ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 6.1 Entire Contract and Amendments. This 

Agreement (together with the Exhibits attached hereto) is the 

entire contract between the City Library Trustees and the 

District Library Trustees relating to the subject matter 

hereof, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 

negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, 

between the City Library Trustees and the District Library 

Trustees, and may not be modified or amended except by a 

written instrument executed by both of the Parties. 

Section 6.2 Third Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement, 

whether expressed or implied, is intended to confer any rights 

or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any other 

persons other than the City Library Trustees and the District 

Library Trustees and their respective successors and assigns, 

nor is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or 

discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons to 

either the City Library Trustees or the District Library 

Trustees, nor shall any provision give any third parties any 

rights of subrogation or action over or against either the 

City Library Trustees or the District Library Trustees. This 

Agreement is not intended to and does not create any third-

party beneficiary rights whatsoever. 

Section 6.3 Counterparts. Any number of counterparts 

of this Agreement may be executed and delivered and each shall 

be considered an original and together they shall constitute 

one agreement. 

68



 

17 

 

I 
Section 6.4 Waiver. Any Party to this Agreement may 

elect to waive any right or remedy it may enjoy hereunder, 

provided that no such waiver shall be deemed to exist unless 

such waiver is in writing. No such waiver shall obligate the 

waiver of any other right or remedy hereunder, or shall be 

deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies 

provided pursuant to this Agreement. l 

Section 6.5 Cooperation and Further Assurances. The 

City Library Trustees and the District Library Trustees each 

covenant and agree that each will do, execute, acknowledge 

and deliver or cause to be done, executed and delivered, such 

agreements, instruments and documents supplemental hereto and 

such further acts, instruments, pledges and transfers as may 

be reasonably required for the better assuring, pledging, 

assigning and confirming unto the City Library Trustees or 

the District Library Trustees all and singular the rights, 

Library Services and District Library Tax covenanted, agreed, 

and pledged to be provided or paid under or in respect of 

this Agreement. 

Section 6.6 Severability.  If any section, subsection, 

term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 

to either Party or circumstance shall, to any extent, be 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of such section, 

subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the 

application of same to such Party or circumstances other than 

those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not 

be affected thereby. 

Section 6.7 Notices. All notices, demands, requests, 

consents, approvals or other communications or instruments 

required or otherwise given under this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be executed by the party or an officer, 

69



 

20 

 

agent or attorney of the party, and shall be deemed to have 

been effective as of the date of actual delivery, if delivered 

personally or by telecommunication actually received, or as 

of the third (3rd) day from and including the date of posting, 

if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, with postage prepaid, addressed as follows (unless 

another address is provided in writing): 

To the City Library Trustees: 

Bloomington Public Library 

205 East Olive Street  

Bloomington, IL 61701  

Attention: Director  

Tel: (309) 828-6091 

Email: librarydirector@bloomingtonlibrary.org 

Fax: (309) 828-7312 

 

To the District Library Trustees: 

c/o Bloomington Public Library 

205 East Olive Street  

Bloomington, IL 61701  

Attention: G P P L D  President  

Tel No.: (309) 828-6091 

Email: gppldfullboard@bloomingtonlibrary.org 

Fax No.: (309) 828-7312 

 

With a copy to the President at his or her home address. 

 

Section 6.8 Successors in Interest. This Agreement 

shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 

hereto and their respective authorized successors and 

assigns; provided, however, that neither Party may assign its 

rights under this Agreement without the express written 

approval of the other Party. 

Section 6.9 No Joint Venture, Agency, or Partnership 

Created; Reservation of Rights, etc. Neither anything in this 

Agreement nor any actions of the Parties to this Agreement 

shall be construed by the Parties or any third person to 

create the relationship of a partnership, agency, or joint 

70



 

20 

 

venture between or among such parties. Except as otherwise 

specifically provided in this Agreement, each Party 

exclusively retains and reserves the rights, obligations, 

duties and powers for providing library service to and for 

the City under, pursuant to and in accordance with the Local 

Library Act, and to and for the District, under, pursuant to 

and in accordance with the District Library Act, as 

applicable, and neither anything in this Agreement nor the 

actions of the Parties to this Agreement shall be construed 

by the Parties or any third person to mean or imply that 

either Party has assumed or otherwise been delegated any such 

rights, obligations, duties or powers of the other Party. 

Section 6.10 Illinois Law. This Agreement shall be 

construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 

Illinois. 

Section 6.11 Costs and Expenses. If either Party 

defaults in the performance of its obligations hereunder, the 

Parties agree that the defaulting Party shall pay the non-

defaulting Party's costs of enforcing the defaulting Party's 

obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited 

to attorneys' fees and expenses. 

Section 6.12 No Personal Liability of Officials. No 

covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, 

officer, agent, employee or attorney of either Party, in his 

or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the 

City Library Trustees or the District Library Trustees nor any 

official of the City Library Trustees shall be liable 

personally under this Agreement or be subject to any personal 

liability or accountability by reason of the execution, 

delivery and performance of this Agreement. 

Section 6.13 Repealer.  To the extent that any 

71



 

20 

 

ordinance, resolution, rule, order, or provision of either 

Party or any part thereof is in conflict with the provisions 

of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

controlling. 

Section 6.14 Term. This Agreement shall be and 

remain in full force and effect from July 1, 1990, until June 

30, 1991as amended XXXX XX, 2023, until June 30, 2024. This 

Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year 

thereafter for successive one-year periods beginning July 1 

and ending June 30 unless either Party provides written notice 

to the other Party of its intention to terminate this 

Agreement at the end of any such term at least ninety (90) 

days prior to the applicable June 30. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Library Trustees and the 

District Library Trustees have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date set 

forth below. 

  

72



 

21 

 

 BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE 

PUBLIC LIBRARY OF THE CITY OF 

BLOOMINGTON, MCLEAN COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS 

Date: ________________________ By: ___________________________ 

Attest: 

    Its President 

______________________________ 

Secretary  

  

 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE 

GOLDEN PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, MCLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Date: ________________________ By: ___________________________ 

Attest: 

    Its President 

______________________________ 

Secretary  

 

73



 
 

Mission 
We provide our diverse community with a helpful and welcoming place that offers equitable access to 
the world of ideas and information and supports lifelong learning. 
 

Vision 
To enrich and inspire our diverse and evolving community.  
 

Strategic Priorities 

o Explore and implement strategies to improve access to the library and its resources. 

 
o Provide relevant and innovative services, collections, and programs to meet the emergent needs of 

our community. 

 
o Recruit, train, and develop a knowledgeable, collaborative staff. 

 
o Work effectively through the use of technology. 

 
o Administer a cost-effective public library. 

 

Goals 
TBD 

 
Initiatives 
TBD 

74


	Library Board of Trustees Agenda
	Item 5.B - Director's Report.pdf
	Item 5.B - GPPLD Minutes.pdf
	Item 5.B - Monthly Statistics.pdf
	Item 5.B - Incident & Suspension Report.pdf
	Item 5.C - 5C. Fiscal Report.pdf
	Item 5.C - 5C. Expansion Project Fiscal Report.pdf
	Item 5.C - 5C. Donations Report.pdf
	Item 6.A - Minutes April 18 2023.pdf
	Item 6.B - 6B. Bills List.pdf
	Item 7.A - Annual EBSCO Subscription Service Renewal.pdf
	Item 8.A - Cover Page
	Item 8.A - GPPLD-BPL Service Contract_working draft.pdf
	Item 8.B - StrategicPlan.pdf

